A DAILY REPORT ON THE SECOND SESSION OF THE CONFERENCE OF THE PARTIES TO THE CONVENTION ON BIOLOGICAL DIVERSITY

. Negoriations Bulletin

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

. _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________}
Vol. 9 No. 37 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD) Thurssday, 16 November 1995

HIGHLIGHTS OF BIOCOP-2
WEDNESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 1995

The second session of the Conference of the Parties (COP+
to the Convention on Biological Diversity (CBD) met for the
ninth working day of the two-week conference. The two-day
Ministerial Segment concluded with adoption of the Jakarta
Ministerial Declaration. Delegates negotiated draft texts in
contact and drafting groups into the night.

MINISTERIAL SEGMENT

UGANDA's Minister of State for Natural Resources noted
environmental protection efforts, including public awareness al
education. The Ambassador for Economic Affairs of the
REPUBLIC OF KOREA urged that the clearing-house
mechanism’s (CHM) pilot-phase have a capacity-building focu
in developing countries. SOUTH AFRICA’s Deputy Minister of
Environmental Affairs and Tourism stressed respect for humatr
rights. BHUTAN's Deputy Minister of the National Environmen
Commission requested international community support for
preservation efforts.

The US Undersecretary of State for Global Affairs said
biosafety discussions must develop a framework for deciding
whether the need for a protocol is established and how to proc
JAPAN’s Ambassador to Indonesia said Japan will promote
biodiversity by providing financial and technical cooperation to
developing nations and continuing domestic efforts. The
SLOVAK REPUBLIC's Office of the Minister of Environment
called for new tools to value biodiversity. The BAHAMAS

Ambassador for the Environment recommended establishing a

expert panel on marine and coastal biodiversity (MCB).
DENMARK'’s Deputy Permanent Undersecretary of State
advocated a biosafety protocol. The NETHERLANDS Director
General for Agriculture, Nature Management and Fisheries
offered assistance to the Secretariat for meetings on
agrobiodiversity and will support a workshop on implementing
sustainable forest management.

The Minister in the National Environmental Secretariat of
LESOTHO explained that implementation of the National
Environmental Action Plan (NEAP) has been slowed by poor
capacity. The Minister of Environment, Habitat and Town
Planning of BENIN juxtaposed sacred traditions with sustainal
resource management. The Minister of Natural Resources ang
Energy of SWAZILAND linked biodiversity conservation to
poverty alleviation and highlighted freshwater biodiversity.

The Ambassador of ALGERIA to Indonesia described a
biodiversity inventory and efforts to conserve species through
protected areas. The Director General of the National Centre for

2nvironmental Research of MADAGASCAR described an action
plan for new conservation initiatives. MOROCCQO’s Ambassador
to Indonesia called for a workshop on cooperation between CBD
and related conventions. The Director General of NIGERIA's
Federal Environmental Protection Agency said Nigeria’'s
ratification of CBD represents support for survival of life in all its
ramifications. BANGLADESH’s Ambassador to Indonesia said
CBD must address poverty.

BULGARIA’s Deputy Minister of the Environment urged
niechnology transfer and encouraged regional approaches. The
Ambassador of AUSTRIA’s Ministry of Foreign Affairs said
benefit-sharing and IPR are related. The Executive Director of
SERITREA’s Agency for the Environment said CBD should light
a sacred fire for reverence of life and become an instrument of
4 peace. The Minister for Foreign Affairs, Planning and
+ Environment for SEYCHELLES called on bioprospectors to
contribute to biodiversity trust funds. The Director General of the
Environment of EQUATORIAL GUINEA's Ministry of Health
and Environment expressed support for ecotourism and
opposition to biopiracy. The Director of Cabinet, Minister of
eg vironment and Nature Protection of SENEGAL supported a
safety protocol as a vehicle for technology transfer. A
representative of RWANDA'’s Minister of Environment and
Tourism called for resources for countries experiencing
humanitarian or ecological disasters. SOLOMON ISLANDS’
Ministry of Agriculture and Fisheries, also on behalf of PAPUA
EW GUINEA, expressed outrage at the patenting of human
enetic resources and called for an advisory opinion of the ICJ.

Undersecretary of State for POLAND’s Ministry of
Environmental Protection, Natural Resources and Forestry called
for a flow of information to enhance technology transfer. On
behalf of AOSIS, the Principal Assistant Secretary, Ministry of
Environment and Quality of Life noted the special significance of
biosafety to SIDS. The Minister of Lands, Surveys and
Environment of WESTERN SAMOA noted the high priority for
implementation of the Barbados Programme of Action for SIDS.
The Conseil du Ministre de 'Environnement pour le Suivi de la
Conference de Rio of FRANCE explained that her country is

bl gware of its responsibilities regarding nuclear testing. The

! mbassador of PAKISTAN to Indonesia called for new and
additional resources. The Ambassador of CHILE to Kenya
endorsed the COP initiative on MCB. The SRI LANKAN
Ambassador to Indonesia expressed concern over access to

genetic resources, biosafety and indigenous knowledge.

This issue of thé&arth Negotiations Bulleti®® <enb@igc.apc.org> is written and edited by Désirée McGraw <mcgraw@Ise.ac.uk>, Daniel Putterman Ph.D.
<dputterman@igc.apc.org>, Lynn Wagner <grund@chaph.usc.edu> and Steve Wise <swise@igc.apc.org>. The Managing Editor is Langston James Go
“Kimo” <kimo@pipeline.com>. French translation by Mongi Gadhoum <gad@Tunisia.EU.net>. Specific funding for coverage of this meeting has been prq
the Norwegian Directorate for Nature Management, the Swedish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the Netherlands, and ACCT
translation). The sustaining donors of Belletin are the International Institute for Sustainable Development <iisd@web.apc.org>, the United Nations Enviro
Programme and the Pew Charitable Trusts through the Pew Global Stewardship Initiative. General support for the Bulletin during 1995 is provided by the
Kingdom, Switzerland, GTZ, FAO and the World Bank. The authors can be contacted during this meeting in Room 1012 of the Hilton Garden Tower (tel: +
570 3600) and at their e-mail addresses. [ISD can be contacted at 161 Portage Ave. East, Sixth Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada. The opinio
in the Earth Negotiations Bulletimre those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. ExcerptsEanth tiegotiations
Bulletinmay be used in other publications with appropriate citation. Electronic versions Btitlein are automatically sent to e-mail distribution lists (ASCII and
PDF format) and can be found on the gopher at <gopher.igc.apc.org> and in hypertext thrdLigkadgeswWWW-server at <http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/> on the
Internet. For further information on ways to access, support or contaEttle Negotiations Bulletisend e-mail to <enb@igc.apc.org>.

ree VI
vided by
French
nment
United
6221

NS express




Thursday, 16 November 1995

arth) Negotiations Bulletin

Vol. 9 No. 37 Page 2

A Reporting Service for Encironment and Development Negotiations

The UK Head of Environment Protection International,
Department of Environment, noted the huge workload COP-2
setting for SBSTTA and COP-3, and stated that COP is not an
appropriate forum for discussing nuclear testing. BURUNDI’s
Director General of the National Institute for Environment and
Nature Conservation (IMECN) called for including forest
ecosystems in the work programme. The Head of Representat
of the EC in Indonesia, on behalf of the EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY, called for the GEF to be the permanent financia
mechanism.

The Ambassador of EGYPT to Indonesia underscored threg
essential elements to an effective CBD: international cooperat
financial resources and technology transfer. The President of
CONAM, on behalf of PERU, called for a moratorium and code
of ethics on LMOs. The Ambassador of JORDAN to Indonesia
outlined efforts to combat desertification and deforestation. Th
Head of the TANZANIAN Delegation called for: concrete

economic valuation of genetic resources. References to the FAO

sUndertaking on PGR, the status of ex situ germplasm collections,
and a link between Article 15 and Articles 8(j) and 10(c) were
removed.

On intellectual property rights, delegates agreed upon the
nature and timing of the interaction between the Secretariats of
idhe CBD and WTO, in order for the COP to provide input
“regarding the synergies and relationship between the objectives
1l of the CBD and the TRIPs Agreement” to the Committee on
Trade and Environment of WTO. The other major element of the
~» decision was the call for a preliminary Secretariat study of the
d‘,ﬁ;}ffects and implications of IPR systems” on the three objectives
of CBD.

CONTACT GROUPS

BIOSAFETY: The drafting group met into the night, and
resolved bracketed text in the Preamble. It was stated that there

e

measures on CBD'’s equitable sharing provisions; access regimagpeared to be general agreement that a biosafety protocol was

for providers and recipients; and a biosafety protocol.
ETHIOPIA’s National Environment Protection Authority called
for the operationalization of technology transfer and of the
clearing-house and financial mechanisms. The Minister of
Environment and Natural Resources of NICARAGUA noted th
possibility of “conserving to produce, and producing to conser
and supported devoting COP-3 to indigenous issues. ISRAEL
Ambassador to Singapore said biodiversity protection will be g
result of peace in his region.

The Chair noted consensus, based on broad consultations,
the Jakarta Ministerial Declaration (UNEP/CBD/COP/
2/L.2/Rev.1) which: reaffirms CBD as a global partnership; nof
that COP-2 provides momentum for global agreement on
consideration of the need for and modalities of a biosafety
protocol; stresses biodiversity education and the importance o
CHM for national implementation; and welcomes the
establishment of a Secretariat position on indigenous and loca
communities issues. The COP declares the global consensus
MCB as the Jakarta Mandate on Marine and Coastal Biologicg
Diversity.

DRAFTING GROUP OF THE COW

The drafting group of the Committee of the Whole (COW)
met into the night to review draft Chair’s texts and non-papers,
Regarding the report of the SBSTTA (UNEP/CBD/COP/2/
CWI/L.9), delegates agreed fofer alia, request SBSTTA-2 to
consider a 1996 programme of work consistent with the
programme of work and decisions of COP-2. Regarding
cooperation with other biodiversity-related conventions
(UNEP/CBD/COP/2/CWI/L.16), delegates distinguished betwe
activities for the Secretariat to either explore or undertake; and
broadened the text to request a report on enhanced cooperatic
with biodiversity-related bodies for consideration at COP-3.

Regarding Articles 6 and 8 (UNEP/CBD/COP/2/CW/L.4),
delegates discussed the need for national guidelines to develq
comparability without coercion. Regarding components of
biodiversity under threat (UNEP/CBD/COP/2/CWI/L.5),
delegates deleted references to terms not defined in CBD. Fin
agreement on the last three paragraphs is still pending. The dn
text on the Statement to the International Technical Confereng
on the Conservation and Utilization of Plant Genetic Resource
for Food and Agriculture was agreed.

Regarding access to genetic resources, delegates agreed t
request that the Secretariat continue compiling information on
government measures to implement Article 15, including “any
national interpretations of key terms” of Article 15. A specific lig
of such terms was deleted after much debate. Delegates also

necessary. The group considered the mandate and terms of
reference (TOR) for a proposed Open-EndeidHocWorking
Group to consider its modalities. After extensive debate, language
defining the scope of this group’s mandate referred to “...a
Enegotiation process to develop in the field of the safe transfer,
eiandling and use of LMOs, a protocol on biosafety [in the context
Sof] [specifically focusing on] transboundary [transfer]
nEnovement] of any LMO...setting out for consideration, in
particular, appropriate procedures for advance informed
crgreement.”
MARINE AND COASTAL and TERRESTRIAL ISSUES:
€¥he contact group adopted a draft decision on Forests and
Biological Diversity and text from the marine and coastal drafting
group. The forests draft decision requests the CBD Executive
f Secretary to provide information and advice on indigenous and
local communities and to work toward a background document
| on forests and biodiversity. The document would be transmitted
0to IPF for information and considered at COP-3 regarding
I whether further input to IPF is necessary. Delegates deleted
references to a CSD decision, the IPF establishment and SBSTTA
recommendations, as well as language establishing an
intersessional working group on forests.

The contact group on marine issues agreed on a draft decision,
Annex | (additional conclusions regarding recommendation 1/8
from SBSTTA), and Annex Il (terms of reference and work
programme for amd hocpanel of experts). Delegates adopted
language to “support” SBSTTA recommendations in 1/8 “subject
to” the conclusions in Annex |. Delegates agreed to selecdhe
hocpanel “on the basis of nomination by regional groups for a

eperiod of three years.” SBSTTA will be asked to provide a
summary review at COP-3 of the first annual report of the panel.

brin Annex |, delegates agreed to a redraft regarding the issue of
subsidies. In Annex I, delegates incorporated sub-paragraphs
noting specific issues for study into a reference to address

p activities that impact marine resources.”

BUDGET AND PROGRAMME OF WORK: The contact
group agreed to a draft work programme that reflects delegates’
alattempts to integrate COP decisions with budgetary implications.
afthe budget includes provision for an economist, secondments

efrom FAO and UNESCO and a biosafety meeting.

i THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (COW): The COW is
expected to meet at 3:00 pm to consider the draft decisions of the
tcontact and drafting groups.

CONTACT GROUPS: The contact group on biosafety is

o]

requested the Secretariat to compile information on social and

expected to meet at 10:00 am.



